



THE ONE YEAR DEVOS SCIRLS



Tyndale House Publishers, Inc. Carol Stream, Illinois Visit Tyndale's exciting Web site at www.tyndale.com

TYNDALE and Tyndale's quill logo are registered trademarks of Tyndale House Publishers, Inc.

The One Year is a registered trademark of Tyndale House Publishers, Inc.

The One Year Devos for Girls

Copyright © 2000 by Children's Bible Hour. All rights reserved.

Previously published as The One Year Book of Devotions for Girls by Tyndale House Publishers, Inc.

Cover background artwork © by Kristy Pargeter/iStockphoto. All rights reserved.

Cover artwork of girl jumping © by Pavel Losevsky/iStockphoto. All rights reserved.

Designed by Jacqueline L. Nuñez

Edited by Debbie Bible and Betty Free

Stories written by Katherine R. Adams, Darlene Anderson, Philip J. Anderson, Sandra L. Ardoin, Esther M. Bailey, Melissa M. Bamberg, Brenda Benedict, Trula H. Bensinger, Ruth E. Blount, Karen L. Blumhagen, Gail D. Brown, Wanda E. Brunstetter, Teddie Bryant, Robert Byers, Karen E. Cogan, Kim Cogan, V. Louise Cunningham, Brenda D. Decker, Harriett A. Durrell, Bethany R. Elms, M. Tanya Ferdinandusz, Stephanie E. Frantz, Cathy L. Garnaat, Rose Gobel, Dianne V. Godbold, Jorlyn A. Grasser, Ruth M. Hamel, Jan L. Hansen, Mary G. Houlgate, Ruth Hryshkanych, Cindy Huff, Vera M. Hutchcroft, Ruth I. Jay, Gail L. Jenner, Victoria Johnson, Dean Kelley, Beverly Kenniston, Nance E. Keyes, Sharon King, Phyllis I. Klomparens, Sherry L. Kuyt, Jacqueline J. Leaycraft, Suzanne M. Lima, Agnes G. Livezey, Karen R. Locklear, Richard S. Maffeo, Deborah S. Marett, Hazel W. Marett, Lorna B. Marlowe, Tanya K. Marshall, Anne Martin, Beverly McClain, Susi McCord, Nancy I. Merical, Martha A. Mitchell, Gloria D. Morrison, Sara L. Nelson, Violet E. Nesdoly, Jan Nieland, Sharyl Noelle, Matilda H. Nordtvedt, Mary Rose Pearson, Carolyn A. Penner, Raelene E. Phillips, Connie I. Rainbolt, Sharon K. Regehr, Victoria L. Reinhardt, Lynn Stamm Rex, L. Gail Rhodes, Barbara Riegier, Phyllis Robinson, Deana L. Rogers, Lucinda J. Rollings, Catherine Runyon, A. J. Schut, Marilyn J. Senterfitt, Rhonda S. Sherrill, L. Anne Siegrist, Patricia C. Singletary, Irene C. Strobel, Heather M. Tekavec, Emily I. Thompson, Nancy A. Thompson, Harry C. Trover, Charles VanderMeer, Trudy M. VanderVeen. Janet K. VanDyke, Sandra K. Vaughn, Geri Walcott, Linda M. Weddle, Barbara J. Westberg, Jane Weverink, Cathy J. Wilt, Lois A. Witmer, Carolyn E. Yost. (The author's initials appear at the end of each story.)

All stories are taken from issues of Keys for Kids, published bimonthly by the Children's Bible Hour, PO Box 1, Grand Rapids, Michigan 49501.

Unless otherwise indicated, all Scripture quotations are taken from the Holy Bible, New Living Translation, copyright © 1996. Used by permission of Tyndale House Publishers, Inc., Carol Stream, Illinois 60188. All rights reserved.

Scripture quotations marked NKJV are taken from the New King James Version®. Copyright © 1982 by Thomas Nelson, Inc. Used by permission. All rights reserved. NKJV is a trademark of Thomas Nelson, Inc.

Scripture quotations marked NIV are taken from the HOLY BIBLE, NEW INTERNATIONAL VERSION®. NIV®. Copyright © 1973, 1978, 1984 by International Bible Society. Used by permission of Zondervan. All rights reserved.

The Library of Congress has cataloged the previous edition as follows:

One year book of devotions for girls.

p. cm.

Includes index.

ISBN-10: 0-8423-3619-2 (pbk.)

ISBN-13: 978-0-8423-3619-2 (pbk.)

1. Girls—Prayer-books and devotions—English. 2. Devotional calendars—Juvenile literature. [1. Prayer books and devotions. 2. Devotional calendars.] I. Title: Devotions for girls. II. Tyndale House Publishers.

BV4860 .O54 2000

242'.62-dc21 00-029915

Printed in the United States of America

14 13 12 11 10 09 08

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

JANUARY

- 1 Criticism Versus Love
- 2 Sincerely Wrong
- 3 The Greatest Miracle
- 4 A Sacrificial Gift
- 5 Keep Growing
- 6 Twice Adopted
- 7 Handle with Care
- 8 More Than Milk
- 9 It's a Fact
- 10 No Excuse
- 11 Most Exciting Launch
- 12 The Name Craze (Part 1)
- 13 The Name Craze (Part 2)
- 14 Family Portrait
- 15 Different Way to Talk
- 16 A New Life
- 17 Growing
- 18 Miriam Babysits Moses
- 19 Wholesome Diets
- 20 Is Anyone Looking?
- 21 According to the Label
- 22 Betty's Decision
- 23 Light in the Darkness
- 24 The Real Owner
- 25 The Easy Route
- 26 Sound of the Trumpet
- 27 Through It All
- 28 God's Magic Slate
- 29 Special Identity (Part 1)
- 30 Special Identity (Part 2)
- 31 Why So Snappy?

FEBRUARY

- 1 Just like a Baby
- 2 A Call for Help
- 3 The Right Answer
- 4 Instant Answers
- 5 Warning Words

- 6 One-Way Communication
- 7 Pen Pals
- 8 A Way to Witness
- 9 The Rock
- 10 Too Embarrassed!
- 11 Fifty-Mile Bible
- 12 Debbie's Ring
- 13 Imitate Me
- 14 The Chocolate Box
- 15 The Plant
- 16 The Old Desk
- 17 A Perfect Creation
- 18 Rascal's Song
- 19 Escaped
- 20 Afraid of Cloudy Days?
- 21 Here's My Gift
- 22 A Very Important Letter
- 23 Fox and Geese
- 24 Old and Honorable
- 25 On Thin Ice
- 26 The Missing Sweater
- 27 Baby's First Steps
- 28 I Wish I Could

MARCH

- 1 Good Servants
- 2 Stains on the Carpet
- 3 Knobby Knees and Freckles
- 4 Answer for the Doubter
- 5 A Dog for Rhonda
- 6 The Scare
- 7 What to Wear
- 8 A Helping Hand
- 9 The New Battery
- 10 A Pretty Package
- 11 What's Inside
- 12 Are You an Addict?
- 13 She Loves Me. She Loves Me Not.
- 14 Who Knows Best?
- 15 Party Problems
- 16 The Winning Team

- 17 Everyone's a Winner
- 18 The Youngest (Part 1)
- 19 The Youngest (Part 2)
- 20 Anyone for Garbage?
- 21 Lava Lips
- 22 From Earth to Heaven
- 23 A Willing Heart
- 24 A Comforter
- 25 Company's Coming
- 26 Danger: Mosquitoes!
- 27 The Homecoming
- 28 Blood Is Important
- 29 Living Pictures (Part 1)
- 30 Living Pictures (Part 2)
- 31 The Sacrifice

APRIL

- 1 Off Duty
- 2 The Kite and the Breeze
- 3 Pigs Will Be Pigs
- 4 The Handwoven Dress
- 5 A Home in Heaven
- 6 The Nursery
- 7 An Umbrella of Answers
- 8 The Broken Nest
- 9 Storms and Sunshine
- 10 Down from the Mountain
- 11 Too Young
- 12 Stay Out of the Mud
- 13 Making Rainbows
- 14 After the Bath
- 15 The Escape Plan
- 16 The Best Kind of Gift
- 17 Calluses
- 18 Me Work?
- 19 A Lesson in Mud
- 20 The Donor
- 21 I Do . . . Love You
- 22 Strong Fences
- 23 Mining for Wisdom
- 24 God's Handiwork
- 25 Treasures in Heaven
- 26 The Flood
- 27 Uncommon Sense

- 28 No Stepmother Card
- 29 A Bad Start
- 30 Cracking the Shell

MAY

- 1 Delayed, Not Denied!
- 2 New Skin and New Habits
- 3 Show Your Colors
- 4 The Three-Legged Race
- 5 Seeds, Flowers, and Heaven
- 6 The Leaking Pitcher
- 7 The Blue Mouse
- 8 Mirror on the Wall
- 9 Sara's Disappointment
- 10 Too Busy
- 11 Danger! Turn Around!
- 12 Lesson from a Rubber Band
- 13 Promises, Promises
- 14 Feeling Itchy-Scratchy
- 15 The Broken Thread
- 16 "Goody-Goody"
- 17 Peace
- 18 God's Mouthpiece
- 19 This Isn't Sugar!
- 20 The Wrong Finger
- 21 Growing Up (Part 1)
- 22 Growing Up (Part 2)
- 23 Don't Be a Chicken
- 24 Free as the Air
- 25 An Important Seal
- 26 Star or Sun?
- 27 Feeding the Fire
- 28 The Hidden Garden
- 29 Instant Everything
- 30 Trash or Treasure?
- 31 Whose Fault?

JUNE

- 1 Moving Blues
- 2 A Trip Back in Time (Part 1)
- 3 A Trip Back in Time (Part 2)
- 4 Why Do I Have To?
- 5 Hold Your Nose
- 6 By Any Other Name

- 7 Darla Delays (Part 1)
- 8 Darla Delays (Part 2)
- 9 Birds and Flies
- 10 Popcorn People 11
- Invitation Needed
- 12 The Bride (Part 1) 13 The Bride (Part 2)
- 14
- Sunshine or Rain
- 15 Outdone by Ants
- "God's Goodness" Book 16
- 17 True Love
- 18 The Golden Ruler
- 19 Does It Do Any Good?
- 20 Susan's Pottery
- 21 Block or Bridge?
- 22 Camp Counselor
- 23 Gravel and Sin
- 24 A Happy Reunion
- 25 A New Beginning
- 26 The Rooster Lays an Egg
- 27 Grandma and the Butterfly
- 28 Peacemakers
- 29 The Best Artist
- 30 Winning First Place

JULY

- The Vacation 1
- 2 Two Trees
- 3 Ask the One Who Knows
- 4 Family Reunion
- 5 The Wreckers
- 6 Heavenly Homecoming
- 7 In Your Head
- 8 Treasures That Matter
- 9 Thorns and Berries
- Better Than Rewards 10
- The First Tomatoes 11
- 12 The Princess and the Pea
- 13 Tangled or Attractive?
- 14 Learning and Doing
- 15 Deserving to Die
- 16 A Holy Residence
- 17 Mother's Helpers
- No Deposit, No Return 18

- 19 It Still Stands
- 20 The Bug Light
- 21 Really Empty
- 22 I Don't Want to Go!
- 23 Calm in the Storm
- 24 Kathv's Creation 25 Not a Taurus
- 26 Who Gets the Credit?
- 27 **Guilty Conscience**
- 28 **Building Blocks**
- 29 Finally Thirteen 30 The Empty Cocoon
- 31 A Difficult Move

AUGUST

- **Butterfly Wisdom** 1
- 2 Lazy Susan
- 3 To Grandmother's House (Part 1)
- 4 To Grandmother's House (Part 2)
- 5 To Grandmother's House (Part 3)
- The Fortress 6
- 7 Too Little
- 8 God's Never-Empty Nest
- 9 The Gospel According to You
- 10 Space Travelers
- 11 Pulling on the Leash
- 12 **Bought Back**
- Sarah's Sour Milk 13
- 14 Forgotten Invitation
- 15 Discontented Bessie
- A Good Decision 16
- 17 The Imitator
- 18 Broken Shells
- 19 A Crazy Afternoon
- 20 Its Proper Place (Part 1)
- Its Proper Place (Part 2) 21
- 22 Under the Surface
- 23 T-Shirt Day
- 24 The "White" Pillowcase
- 25 Not Hopeless
- 26 No More Doubts
- 27 Reflections
- 28 Love Returned
- 29 The Viewpoint

- 30 Dee and the Dandelions
- 31 Flowerpot Shoes

SEPTEMBER

- 1 Knock Knock
- 2 Missed by a Hair
- 3 Who's the Thief?
- 4 Sharpened Tools
- 5 Lumps of Clay
- 6 For Future Use
- 7 The Famine
- 8 Burst Balloon
- 9 Rose of Kindness
- 10 The Perfect Kev
- 11 On the Shelf
- 12 A Poor Testimony
- 13 Child of the King (Part 1)
- 14 Child of the King (Part 2)
- 15 Names
- 16 Rules
- 17 Wrong "Right" Answers
- 18 Acknowledge It
- 19 The Game of Life
- 20 Passing the Test
- 21 It Happened to Me
- 22 Dig Deep
- 23 Too Much Salt
- 24 Under the Skin
- 25 Part-Time Friend
- 26 What Beautiful Feet
- 27 An Early Frost
- 28 A Home for Caryn
- 29 Torn Friendship
- 30 Stop That Noise!

OCTOBER

- 1 No Shortcuts
- 2 The Hook
- 3 Making Pearls
- 4 Appreciation Expressed
- 5 The Sandwich
- 6 Punish or Protect?
- 7 Tongue of Fire (Part 1)
- 8 Tongue of Fire (Part 2)

- 9 The Real Reason
- 10 Not Good Enough
- 11 Forbidden Sweets
- 12 The Power to Forgive
- 13 Disappointments
- 14 Open Lines
- 15 Unfair!
- 16 Flea Market Bargain
- 17 Rich or Poor
- 18 Not Quite Free
- 19 Praise Works Wonders
- 20 Substitute Teacher
- 21 Only One Way?
- 22 God's Training School
- 23 Rejected!
- 24 The Last Words
- 25 The Invitation
- 26 Dumb Excuses
- 27 Fractured Friendship
- 28 Love for Hate
- 29 True Love
- 30 God and Me.
- 31 No More Secrets

NOVEMBER

- 1 The Jungle Killer
- 2 It Made Me Laugh
- 3 The Quilt
- 4 A Better Comparison
- 5 They're People, Too
- 6 Disguised
- 7 The Yardstick
- 8 Heather's New Face
- 9 Lynn's Visit
- 10 Check It Out
- 11 Chocolate without Sugar
- 12 Dead Bread
- 13 Holy Spirit Feet (Part 1)
- 14 Holy Spirit Feet (Part 2)
- 15 Legs on Her Prayers
- 16 Rotten Teeth
- 17 Beeper Call
- 18 The Bike Accident
- 19 What We Have

20	It Ought to Hurt	10	Written Down
21	Worth Listening	11	Borrowed Things
22	Just like Dorcas	12	The Right Repairman
23	In Shape	13	Snowballing
24	Pretty Package	14	Blessed and a Blessing
25	Thank You	15	Experienced Comforter
26	God's Patchwork Quilt	16	Make Up Your Mind
27	The Kiwi	17	Good News! (Part 1)
28	Back to the Beginning	18	Good News! (Part 2)
29	Ordinary but Pretty	19	The Sample
30	Little by Little	20	Snowflakes and People
DECEMBED		21	Is That Me?
DEAL			
DEC	EMBER	22	Well-Protected
DECI		22 23	Well-Protected The Strange Bird
	The Clay Pots		
1	The Clay Pots The Blank Tape	23	The Strange Bird
1 2	The Clay Pots The Blank Tape Just like Our Baby!	23 24	The Strange Bird The Real Gift
1 2 3	The Clay Pots The Blank Tape	23 24 25	The Strange Bird The Real Gift The Christmas Watch (Part 1)
1 2 3 4	The Clay Pots The Blank Tape Just like Our Baby! Footsteps in the Snow	23 24 25 26	The Strange Bird The Real Gift The Christmas Watch (Part 1) The Christmas Watch (Part 2)
1 2 3 4 5	The Clay Pots The Blank Tape Just like Our Baby! Footsteps in the Snow A Call from God	23 24 25 26 27	The Strange Bird The Real Gift The Christmas Watch (Part 1) The Christmas Watch (Part 2) The Christmas Watch (Part 3)
1 2 3 4 5 6	The Clay Pots The Blank Tape Just like Our Baby! Footsteps in the Snow A Call from God I Deserve	23 24 25 26 27 28	The Strange Bird The Real Gift The Christmas Watch (Part 1) The Christmas Watch (Part 2) The Christmas Watch (Part 3) The Right Time
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	The Clay Pots The Blank Tape Just like Our Baby! Footsteps in the Snow A Call from God I Deserve Cabbage Patch What?	23 24 25 26 27 28 29	The Strange Bird The Real Gift The Christmas Watch (Part 1) The Christmas Watch (Part 2) The Christmas Watch (Part 3) The Right Time Just a Baby

INDEX OF TOPICS INDEX OF SCRIPTURE READINGS INDEX OF MEMORY VERSES

INTRODUCTION FOR PARENTS

For many years Children's Bible Hour has published *Keys for Kids*, a bimonthly devotional magazine for kids. Parents and children have appreciated their fine ministry over the years, and Tyndale House is proud to present this new collection of stories from *Keys for Kids*.

The One Year Devos for Girls has a full year's worth of stories that girls will find especially interesting. Each story illustrates a Scripture reading for the day, and following each one is a "How about You?" section. This asks girls to apply the story to their lives.

There is also a memory verse for each day, often taken from the Scripture reading. Unless otherwise noted, memory verses are quoted from the *New Living Translation*. Verses marked NIV are from the *New International Version*, while those marked NKJV are from the *New King James Version*. You may want to encourage your girls to memorize each verse as it appears, or you can have them use the Bible translation your family prefers.

Each devotion ends with a key phrase at the bottom of the page. This three-to five-word phrase summarizes the lesson and helps girls know how to respond to it.

The stories in this devotional are geared toward girls between the ages of six and ten. Your daughters can enjoy these stories by themselves as they develop their own daily quiet time. (You can supervise that time as much or as little as you wish.) Or the stories can be used as part of your family devotions. Like stories from the Bible, the stories here speak not only to children but also to adults. They are simple, direct, and concrete. And they speak to everyone in understandable terms, just as Jesus' parables do.

This book contains Scripture indexes of daily readings and of memory verses, as well as a topical index. The Scripture indexes are helpful for locating a story or verse related to a passage that you want to discuss. The topical index is useful for dealing with concerns that arise in any family, such as health, relationships, telling the truth, and trusting God.

We hope you'll use this book every day, but don't feel locked into any one format. Please use any story any time you feel it relates to a special situation in your family.

CRITICISM VERSUS LOVE

(Read Mark 12:28-33)

As the family car swung away from the curb, little Annie waved to Mrs. Shrively, who was climbing her porch steps. Sarah leaned forward and rested her arms on the back of the front seat. "Whew! I'm glad Mrs. Shrively's gone," she said. "She was about to drive me crazy."

Her brother Rob agreed. "And she looks funny, too."

"And her dresses . . . ," Sarah giggled. "They're worse than bags. They're tents!"

"Kids!" Mother's voice showed her disapproval. "You both know you're not to talk like that! Mrs. Shrively is a wonderful Christian woman."

"But she bosses me around all the time," said Rob, "and then she quotes Scripture to back it up. I wish she'd just leave me alone."

"She embarrasses me in front of my friends," complained Sarah.

Dad joined the conversation. "But she is just the kind of person that Jesus would have befriended. He loves everyone, including the Mrs. Shrivelys of the world."

"And I doubt that Jesus would make fun of her," answered Sarah. Dad nodded.

"But it sure will be hard not to make fun of her," said Rob.

"I'm sure God will help you," said Mother.

"Let's all ask God to help us," suggested Dad. "If we hold up one another in prayer, God will help us to do what is right." *RG*



HOW ABOUT YOU?

Maybe there's someone you really have trouble liking—someone who dresses differently or acts strangely or just bugs you. Don't join the kids at school if they pick on one of your classmates. Whenever you're tempted to be critical or unkind, remember that God made the person you're criticizing, and God loves that person just as much as he loves you.

LOVE OTHERS AS JESUS DOES

MEMORIZE:

"But God showed his great love for us by sending Christ to die for us while we were still sinners." Romans 5:8 2

SINCERELY WRONG

(Read Isaiah 64:6-8)

Dana and Dan were spending the week with their uncle and aunt, and one day they got into a discussion on how to get to heaven. "The Bible says that only people who admit they're sinners and accept Jesus will go to heaven," Uncle Scott told them.

"But we know lots of really good people," argued Dan. "They go to all different kinds of churches and probably believe all different kinds of things. But they're all sincere."

"Yeah," agreed Dana. "How can anybody say they're not going to heaven?" That night, Dana heard a groaning sound coming from Dan's room. She went to investigate. "O-o-oh," moaned Dan, "my stomach! What can I do?"

"You ate too much tonight," scolded Dana. "But I saw some pink stuff in the medicine cabinet—stuff like we use at home. That should make you feel better. It's on the top shelf in a white bottle."

Dan headed for the bathroom and took the medicine. Then he tried to sleep again but soon gave up. He called his sister. "If anything, that medicine made me worse," he told her.

"Did you take the pink stuff?" Dana asked.

"Pink stuff?" Dan groaned. "I thought you said the white stuff in the pink bottle!"

Quickly, Dana called Aunt Sue and explained what had happened. Aunt Sue checked, and she saw that what Dan had believed to be something that would help his stomach was actually hand lotion. "I don't think it will hurt you," she said, "but we'll check with the doctor to make sure." She headed for the telephone and soon found out what to do.

"It really is silly to think it doesn't matter what you believe as long as you're sincere about it, isn't it?" Dan said when Uncle Scott talked with him. "I sure was sincere when I took that stuff last night. Now I know what you meant about people being sincere but still being wrong and missing the way to heaven."

Uncle Scott nodded. "I'm glad you realize that now," he said. "It was bad enough to be wrong about the medicine, but it's much worse to be wrong about the way to heaven. Jesus is the one and only way." *HCT*



HOW ABOUT YOU?

Do you think it doesn't matter so much what religion you follow? Do you believe everyone who sincerely does his best will go to heaven? That isn't true. Did you notice what God says about your good works, sincere though you may be? He compares them to filthy rags! Quit doing things your own way and come to Jesus.

MEMORIZE:

"All our righteous acts are like filthy rags." Isaiah 64:6, NIV

YOU CAN BE SINCERE— BUT WRONG

THE GREATEST MIRACLE

(Read Romans 6:4-11)

3

Greg's eyes lit up as he listened to Aunt Karen on the phone. "Thank you for praying for Maria," she said. "The infection in her eye has completely cleared up."

"That's really a miracle!" exclaimed Greg as he thought back over the past months. His little cousin had been taking various medications to clear up an eye infection, but the doctor thought he'd have to send Maria to an eye specialist for possible surgery. Greg and his family had been praying every day that God would heal Maria's eye.

"Tonya!" called Greg. "Guess what? Aunt Karen says that Maria's eye is better!"

"Really? Oh, great!" cheered Tonya. "Mom, come and hear about our miracle!" Mother hurried into the room to see what all the commotion was about. "What happened?" she asked. Tonya and Greg told her about their Aunt Karen's call. "Isn't that neat!" exclaimed Tonya. Then she added thoughtfully, "God answered our prayers, didn't he? I wish he'd do a miracle in my life, too."

Mother smiled. "Actually, he has," she said. "As a matter of fact, God has performed a wonderful miracle in each of your lives."

"I can't remember him healing me," protested Tonya.

"What miracle are you talking about, Mom?" Greg wanted to know.

"I'm talking about the day that each of you received Jesus as Savior," Mother explained. "He healed you on the inside by changing you from children who wanted to do wrong into children who want to do right. That is really the greatest miracle of all." *DLR*



HOW ABOUT YOU?

Has Jesus done a miracle in your life? Would you like him to? Many people today are looking for miracles to prove that God's power is real, but they fail to recognize the greatest miracle of all—a changed life. If you've experienced this miracle, thank God for demonstrating his saving power in your life. If you haven't yet experienced this, talk with a trusted friend or adult.

MEMORIZE:

"What this means is that those who become Christians become new persons. They are not the same anymore, for the old life is gone.

A new life has begun!"

2 Corinthians 5:17

SALVATION IS A MIRACLE

4

A SACRIFICIAL GIFT

(Read 2 Corinthians 9:6-9)

"I wonder if that missionary will get the money he needs to go to the mission field," said Russ after the service one Sunday. "Too bad Mr. Gaylord wasn't there. He always manages to miss the sermons on giving. I bet he's never given a sacrificial gift in all his life!" Russ was referring to a rich old man who lived not far from their home and who attended their church.

Connie agreed. "Remember how the missionary spoke about 'giving till it hurts'?" she asked. "I'll bet just the thought of giving hurts Mr. Gaylord." Both children laughed.

"Now, wait a minute, you two," protested Mother. "Have either of you ever given a sacrificial gift?"

Connie was surprised. "But it's different with us!" she exclaimed. "We've got nothing to sacrifice or we would."

"Sure we would!" agreed Russ. "If I have anything the Lord wants, I'll give it." "Be careful," warned Mother. "If you make a promise to the Lord, he expects you to keep it."

That afternoon the children were playing with their dog, Taffy, when Mr. Gaylord came by. To their surprise, he offered to buy Taffy for ten dollars. "No way!" said Russ.

"Not enough money, eh?" grunted Mr. Gaylord. "Well, all right—I'll give you \$25 for him, and that's my final offer."

Again the children shook their heads. "We wouldn't sacrifice Taffy for any . . . ," began Connie. She stopped, startled. The word "sacrifice" reminded her of their earlier conversation. Russ and Connie looked at each other. They knew what they needed to do. With tears in their eyes, they sold Taffy to a very surprised Mr. Gaylord.

Later Mr. Gaylord talked with their mother and learned why they had sold Taffy. "That dog meant all the world to those children," he exclaimed when he had heard the story, "yet they were willing to give him up for the Lord!" He shook his head in amazement. "This is the most powerful sermon I've ever had preached to me," he added. "If they can give \$25, I can give a thousand. And from now on, I'm going to start giving the way those children have taught me to give." HCT



HOW ABOUT YOU?

Sometimes God asks us to give sacrificially. Ask him what he would have you do, and then do it. After all he has done for you, no sacrifice is too great to make for him!

MEMORIZE:

"God loves the person who gives cheerfully." 2 Corinthians 9:7

GIVE SACRIFICIALLY

KEEP GROWING

(Read 1 Peter 2:1-3)

5

"Did I really wear this?" asked Michelle. She held up the tiny, knitted bonnet.

Mother smiled. "Yes," she said. "Isn't it amazing how little we are at first and how much we grow?" She picked up a pair of baby shoes. "You wore these when you were about a year old and had just started walking." Mother rubbed the soft leather. "Before long, you were running everywhere and were ready for a larger pair of shoes."

Michelle grinned, and they continued to dig through the box of memories. Michelle picked up a small scrapbook and opened it. "You wrote in this, Mom. It says, 'Michelle's drawings from ages three to six." She examined the pages. "At least my drawings got better each year," she said.

"Yes, they did," agreed Mother. "The bigger you grew, the more you learned about how to draw houses, trees, and people." She picked up a sheet of paper. "Look. Here's a list of questions you asked when you were in second grade."

"Really? That was the year I asked Jesus into my heart," said Michelle. She looked at the list. "Listen to these, Mom. 'Are clouds made out of cotton candy?' 'Is God in all places?' 'Why did Jesus have to die?'"

"All good questions," said Mother. "Do you know the answers now?"

"Sure," said Michelle. "I've learned a lot since then."

Mother nodded. "Good," she said. "You grew physically and mentally, and you grew spiritually, too. That's as it should be."

Michelle smiled. "We grow physically and mentally by eating food and studying, and we grow spiritually through things like Bible reading and church, right?" she asked.

"Those things certainly help," agreed Mother. "And don't forget that we must not only read but obey God's Word."

Michelle held up the scrapbook. "It's like these drawings," she said. "The more I grew, the better I drew. And the more I...ah..." She laughed. "Oops! I can't think of a rhyme to tell how I grew spiritually." *SLA*



HOW ABOUT YOU?

You don't wear the same clothes you wore a few years ago, do you? You're able to solve harder problems and do better at sports, right? Have you also grown spiritually? Do you know more about Jesus? Memorizing Bible verses, faithful attendance in church and Sunday school, and studying God's Word will help you grow spiritually.

MEMORIZE:

"But grow in the special favor and knowledge of our Lord and Savior Jesus Christ." 2 Peter 3:18

GROW SPIRITUALLY

6

TWICE ADOPTED

(Read Galatians 4:4-7)

Brenda, the adopted daughter of Rev. and Mrs. Marsh, never got tired of hearing the story about when her parents took her home from the adoption agency. "It happened when you were only six weeks old," her father told her one evening when she begged to hear the story again. "Since the ride home was a long one, they sent a bottle along with us so we could feed you on the way home. But you kept falling asleep when you were supposed to be drinking your bottle."

Brenda giggled. "So you kept blowing the horn to try to keep me awake, right?"

"Right," said Dad. "And I'll never forget when the agency first called me at work and told me they had a baby for us. I was so excited, I forgot to ask if it was a boy or a girl." Everyone laughed as the family recalled the happy event.

"What does the word adopt mean?" asked Brenda.

"I looked it up once," said Mother. "The dictionary says it means to voluntarily take a child of other parents as one's own child." Mother gave Brenda a hug. "We gladly took you as our own. We're so thankful the Lord brought you to us."

"You know, Brenda," added Dad, "the same thing is true of our relationship to God. The Bible tells us that when we trust the Lord Jesus Christ, God accepts us as his own children. We're adopted into the family of God."

"Then I've been adopted twice," said Brenda happily. "I was adopted into your family when I was a baby, and I was adopted into God's family when I became a Christian. Now I belong to you, and I belong to God. I like being adopted!" *CVm*



HOW ABOUT YOU?

Have you been adopted into God's family? He wants you to be a part of his family. But first, you need to accept Jesus as your Savior. If you have questions, ask a trusted friend or adult.

MEMORIZE:

"But to all who believed him and accepted him, he gave the right to become children of God." John 1:12

GOD WANTS TO ADOPT YOU

HANDLE WITH CARE

(Read Luke 12:16-21)

Crash! The sound of shattering glass echoed through the house. Both Randy and his mother ran into the kitchen. "Oh, Jennifer, you didn't!" Mother exclaimed when they saw the little girl looking in dismay at pieces of a crystal vase scattered all over the floor. "I told you not to touch that! You've broken my new vase!"

"I didn't mean to," Jennifer sobbed. "I just wanted to hold it."

Mother nodded. "I see that," she said. "Right now I want you to go wait in your room before you get cut on this glass. I'll be there to talk to you in a minute, but first I need to get this picked up. Randy, would you get out the vacuum for me, please?"

As they worked, Randy shook his head. "Jennifer should have known better than to pick up the vase," he said. "But since she did pick it up, she should have hung on tight!"

"That's true," agreed Mother. She looked thoughtful. "I can't help but think of something else that we all are holding in our hands—something people often let slip away," she added. Randy looked at his empty hands in bewilderment. "Our souls are in our hands," continued Mother. "The soul is the most valuable thing we possess, yet people play with it so carelessly. Many are like the rich fool Jesus talked about—interested only in having enough to eat, having a good time, and being popular. Remember, Son, you need to handle your soul with care." *BJW*



HOW ABOUT YOU?

Are you being careless with your soul? It's that special something inside your body that will live forever. It's worth more than the whole world! Your soul is in your care. It's up to you to decide if your soul will go to heaven. To find out more, ask a trusted friend or adult.

MEMORIZE:

"And how do you benefit if you gain the whole world but lose your own soul in the process?" Mark 8:36

YOUR SOUL IS VALUABLE

8

MORE THAN MILK

(Read Hebrews 5:12-14)

"Lindy, have you memorized your Bible verse for church?" asked Mom.

"Yeah, but church isn't fun anymore," grumbled Lindy.

"Why not?" asked Mom, spooning mashed carrot into baby Robyn's mouth.

"Things are just different," replied Lindy. "Now we have to read right from the Bible and memorize verses and . . ." She paused as baby Robyn made a gagging sound. "What's the matter, Robyn?" asked Lindy as she tapped a spoon on the high chair, trying to distract her baby sister.

"She's so used to milk and cereal and juices that she's finding it a bit difficult

to handle lumps," explained Mom.

"Poor Robyn," said Lindy sympathetically. She turned to her mother. "Why not just let her have milk then?"

"Because she's no longer a tiny baby," said Mom. "Robyn has to get used to taking solid food if she's to grow and be healthy."

"Oh," said Lindy. She stroked her sister's cheek. "Eat up, Robyn. You've got to get big and strong soon so you can play with me!"

Mom again held the spoon to the baby's mouth. "You're having the same kind of trouble as Robyn," she observed.

"Me!" exclaimed Lindy indignantly. "I have no problem swallowing my food!"

"Not your physical food," agreed Mom, "but how about your spiritual food? When you were a baby in the faith, you were fed 'milk'—cute little songs, simple Bible stories, fun-to-do drawings and handwork. Now that you're growing up, milk alone isn't enough, and you need solid food—things like more difficult Bible verses to study and memorize." *MTF*



HOW ABOUT YOU?

Are you having trouble with the "lumps" in your spiritual diet? Do you feel like the Bible is too hard to understand, like church lasts too long, or like it's more fun to play than to learn Bible verses? Remember, God wants you to grow up on the inside and the outside.

MEMORIZE:

"Brothers, stop thinking like children. In regard to evil be infants, but in your thinking be adults." 1 Corinthians 14:20, NIV

GROW IN THE LORD

IT'S A FACT

(Read 1 John 5:9-13)

9

Sherri sat in her science class, nibbling the end of her pencil, but her mind was still on the message she had heard in church the day before. It was about how all have sinned and need Jesus as Savior. Sherri sighed. I know I'm a sinner, and I have asked Jesus to forgive me, she thought. I know the Bible says he will, but I wonder if I should ask him to forgive me again. I really don't feel like I'm a Christian. Actually, Sherri often didn't feel like she was a Christian, so several times before, she had confessed her sin and told Jesus she trusted him to forgive her.

Suddenly Sherri's thoughts were interrupted as she heard her teacher, Mr. Shanks, saying, "Did you know you're spinning right now? Like a top, the earth spins on its axis, making a complete rotation every 24 hours. The axis is an imaginary line that connects the North Pole and the South Pole. The earth also travels around the sun at an average speed of 66,600 miles an hour. It takes 365 days to make the 595 million-mile circuit. Those are the facts. So even though we don't feel it, we're not only moving, we're spinning!"

Wow! thought Sherri. She was impressed. Suddenly another thought struck her. Even though I don't feel like I'm spinning, scientists say that I am. And even though I don't feel like I'm a Christian, the Bible says I am! And the Bible is more accurate than science.

That evening Dad finished family devotions by asking Sherri to read several verses from 1 John (see today's Scripture). After reading the verses, Sherri smiled and told her family what she had learned about the earth in science class. "I believe what the scientists say about the earth moving and spinning, and I believe what God says about salvation," she told them. "It's a fact that the earth is spinning even though I can't feel it, and it's also a fact that I've accepted Jesus as my Savior—so I'm a Christian even though I might not always feel like I am. It doesn't depend on my feelings at all." *NAT*



HOW ABOUT YOU?

Do you know you have eternal life? You can be sure of it. The Bible says you have eternal life if you've trusted in Jesus Christ to be your Savior. Rely on the fact of God's Word, not on your feelings.

MEMORIZE:

"So whoever has God's Son has life; whoever does not have his Son does not have life." 1 John 5:12

BELIEVE GOD'S WORD

NO EXCUSE

(Read Romans 3:19-23)

"Come on, Shannon!" Nicole urged her older sister. "You can make the light." Shannon grinned. "OK. Hang on!" With a burst of speed, they went through the traffic light just after it turned red.

Shannon groaned as she noticed a police car in the rearview mirror. Nicole turned, and she saw it, too. She felt guilty as she remembered how she had urged Shannon to go through the changing light. They pulled to the side of the road in response to the flashing police signal, and the officer approached their car. Soon the policeman was driving away, leaving the girls staring at the traffic ticket Shannon held in her hand.

When the girls' parents learned about the ticket, Shannon made excuses. "I don't see why that policeman couldn't have just overlooked it," she said. "If the light was red, it had only just turned! Besides, all I did is go through that one little red light when no cars were coming anyway! It's not like I robbed a bank or murdered somebody."

Mom shook her head. "It was foolish and dangerous and wrong to go through a changing light," she said. "You broke the law, and now you have to pay."

"That's right," agreed Dad as he looked at the ticket. "Your excuses remind me of people who think they aren't bad enough to miss heaven. They think they don't need to be saved from their sins. But everyone who is honest has to admit he's done at least one wrong thing. So he's a lawbreaker, and the fine must be paid." Dad handed the ticket back to Shannon. "You'll have to pay this fine your-self—but, thank God, Jesus already has paid the fine for your sins." *PR*



HOW ABOUT YOU?

Do you think you can get into heaven just because you haven't done very many wrong things? Have you ever told one lie? Disobeyed just once? Had a bad thought? Done just one wrong thing? Then God says you're guilty—you've broken his law. Only Jesus could pay the "fine." He did this on the cross. Talk to a trusted friend or adult if you have more questions about what having a relationship with Jesus means.

MEMORIZE:

"And the person who keeps all of the laws except one is as guilty as the person who has broken all of God's laws." James 2:10

ONE WRONG BRINGS GUILT

INDEX OF TOPICS

Abortion

January 29

Accepting others

March 11, April 28, May 21, 23,

August 18

Accusing others

February 26

Advice

December 29

Anger

March 2

Appearance

March 7, April 24, November 27

Attitudes

November 8

Baptism

March 30

Beauty

March 3, May 8, August 1, October 30

Bible, the

January 9, February 11, March 13, June 22, July 10, August 26, October 16

Bible reading and study

April 23, July 1, September 4, 7, 19, November 10, 22, December 10

Bible memory

January 23, March 17, July 7, September 6 **Bitterness**

September 24

Changes

June 1, 25, July 22, 31

Christian Life, the

March 26, November 15

Church, church school

February 14, November 26

Comforting others

September 21

Communion

March 29

Complaining

April 29

Confessing sins

January 28, March 9, June 23, July 12, September 18,

November 14, 20

Content, being

August 15, October 5

Courage

September 17

Creation

February 17, March 4, April 27,

June 29, July 24, December 20

Death, funerals

January 27, March 22

Deeds, good

May 10, October 10

Devotions

February 6, June 30, December 26

Disappointment

October 13

Discipline

October 7

Divorce, separation

May 31

Doing right

May 16, July 14, October 11,

December 23

Drugs

September 27

Eternal life

January 11, 12, 16, May 5, June 27,

July 30, September 13

Faith

February 7

Family

January 14

Fear

May 17

Following Jesus

January 21, February 10, 13, March 16,

April 19, May 3, 19, June 9, August

17, 23, 27, September 25, October 18,

November 4, 7, December 31

Forgiveness, God's

December 2

Friends, friendship

March 10, October 27, December 28

Giving, of our money, time, and so on

January 4, February 12, March 23,

April 16, July 11

God's care

January 13, February 2, August 6, 8,

October 23, November 18,

December 22

God's grace

January 2, May 24, July 21,

September 2

God's guidance

May 11, June 20, 21, August 31

God's help

September 1, October 12

God's faithfulness

August 25

God's name

September 15

God's will

January 25, 30, November 1,

December 5

God's wisdom

July 3

Golden Rule

March 18, June 18

Gossip

May 27, June 28, September 3, October 8

Idols

June 3

Government

July 19

Jealousy

February 28

Grace

August 13, September 10

Jesus

February 9, March 6, 31, May 7, 26,

October 21, December 24

Guilt

January 10

Jesus' return

January 26, February 20, August 10

Judging others (see also Accepting

Habits

May 2

Joy

February 16

Health, physical

July 16

Health, spiritual

January 8, 17, February 1, 27,

May 22, 29, July 29

May 30, November 24

Heaven

March 27, April 5, June 24, July 4,

September 28

Kindness

others)

March 24, September 9

Helping others

July 17, November 22, December 15

Love, God's

Loving God

January 6, June 14, 17, July 15, September 5, November 12, December 6

september of revenier 12, Beccmiser o

Holy Spirit

April 2, May 25, July 27, August 3,

November 9, 13

Loving others

January 1, March 8, April 6, 13,

April 12, 21, August 28, October 1

May 9, 14, August 19, 22,

September 29, 30, October 28, 29,

November 11, December 11

Horoscopes

Hospitality

March 25

July 25, October 2

Marriage

May 4, June 12

Humility

July 26, December 3

Missions

February 22, December 9

Motives

October 9

Money (see Giving)

Music

February 18, 19

Obedience

June 4, 7, August 11, October 6, November 17

Parents

January 18, 22, February 24, March 19, August 20,

November 21

Patience

October 22

Possessions

April 25, July 8

Prayer

February 4, March 5, May 1, October 14, December 30

Pride

September 8

Priorities

August 21

Problems, trials

March 15, April 8, 9, 30, May 15, July 23, August 5, September 20,

October 3, December 12

Promises

May 13

Purity

January 19, April 11, June 5, 13,

September 14, November 28,

December 7, 27

Relationships

January 31, August 29, November 5,

December 13

Respecting your body

August 16

Respecting authority

October 20

Revenge

September 12

Rules

September 16

Salvation

January 3, 7, February 3, March 28,

April 3, 14, 20, 26, May 20,

June 6, 10, 11, July 6, 18,

August 4, 12, October 25, 26, 31,

December 16, 18, 25

Satan

June 26

Self-control

October 15

Senior citizens

December 14

Serving

February 21, March 1, 12, April 10,

August 7

Sin

January 20, April 17, May 6, 28, June 2, November 6, 16, 30

Spiritual growth

January 5

Spiritual food

February 15

Stewardship

January 24

Talents

April 4, May 12, September 11, December 1

Temptation

February 23, April 15, 22, July 5, 13, 20

Thanking God, thankfulness

October 4, 19, November 25

Thoughts

March 20

Trusting God

March 14, June 16, July 2, 9, November 3, December 8

Witnessing

January 15, February 5, 8, April 1, 7, June 19, August 2, 9, 14, September 26, November 23, December 4, 17, 19

Words

March 21, July 28, August 30, October 24, November 2

Work

April 18, June 15

INDEX OF SCRIPTURE READINGS

Genesis 1:1, 31 July 24	Psalm 19:12-14 June 8, August 30,
Genesis 2:18-25 December 28	October 9, 24
Genesis 2:21-24 May 4	Psalm 23:1-6 <i>August 8</i>
Genesis 3:1-6 July 5	Psalm 24 September 13
Genesis 6:14; 7:10; 8:13-14 April 26	Psalm 25:4-9 <i>August 11</i>
Genesis 37:19-27 February 28	Psalm 33:11-20 <i>July 19</i>
Genesis 37:23-28; 45:4-5 June 21	Psalm 34:11-15 <i>June 28</i>
Genesis 41:46-49, 54 September 7	Psalm 37:3-7 December 12
Genesis 50:14-21 September 20	Psalm 37:3-7, 39-40 <i>November 3</i>
Exodus 2:1-10 January 18	Psalm 40:1-5, 16-17 May 1
Exodus 4:10-11 <i>August 18</i>	Psalm 50:16-23 <i>November 16</i>
Exodus 4:10-12 <i>May 18</i>	Psalm 51:1-2, 7-10 <i>December 2</i>
Exodus 22:10-15 <i>December 11</i>	Psalm 51:1-4, 10-12 December 27
Exodus 34:29-35 <i>August 27</i>	Psalm 51:1-12 January 28, November 20
Leviticus 19:15-18 February 26	Psalm 51:10-13 <i>February 16</i>
Numbers 5:5-7 June 23	Psalm 55:16-17, 22 March 15
Deuteronomy 6:6-9 June 22	Psalm 66:16-20 October 14
Deuteronomy 18:10-13 July 3	Psalm 68:3-4, 32-35 February 18
Deuteronomy 28:1, 8-13 October 18	Psalm 72:17-19 <i>September 15</i>
Deuteronomy 32:16-21, 36-37	Psalm 77:10-15 <i>June 16</i>
February 9	Psalm 78:1-6 <i>August 20</i>
Joshua 1:1-5 <i>July 31</i>	Psalm 91:1-4, 9-10 <i>December 8</i>
Joshua 1:7-9 July 7	Psalm 91:4, 9-10 December 22
Ruth 1:8-18 <i>July 22</i>	Psalm 92:12-15 <i>December 14</i>
1 Samuel 3:1-10 <i>November 17</i> ,	Psalm 103:8-11 December 6
December 5	Psalm 103:8-14, 17-18 July 15
1 Samuel 23:14-18 <i>May 9</i>	Psalm 107:21-24, 31 June 29
2 Kings 5:1-4, 9-14 August 7	Psalm 119:9-16 July 10, September 6
2 Kings 22:8-13 <i>July 1</i>	Psalm 119:11-16 <i>January 23</i>
1 Chronicles 28:9, 20 February 21	Psalm 119:41-46 September 17
1 Chronicles 29:10-17 July 11	Psalm 119:97-104 December 26
Job 28:12-23 <i>April 23</i>	Psalm 119:127-135 September 16
Job 38:1-11 <i>February 17</i>	Psalm 119:129-135 September 19
Psalm 14:1-3 September 18	Psalm 119:161-168 October 16
Psalm 14 <i>April 3</i>	Psalm 124 February 19
Psalm 18:1-3 August 6	Psalm 133 April 28
Psalm 19:1-4 <i>April 27</i>	Psalm 136:1-9, 23-26 November 25
Psalm 19:1-4; 111:2-4 <i>March 4</i>	Psalm 139:1-6 October 11
Psalm 19:7-11 <i>February 11</i>	Psalm 139:1-12 <i>February 2</i>

INDEX OF MEMORY VERSES

Genesis 1:1 July 24 Psalm 51:10 June 5, November 20 Genesis 6:3 October 25 Psalm 51:12 February 16 Genesis 28:15 August 8 Psalm 55:22 March 15 Exodus 4:11 May 21, August 18 Psalm 59:16 February 18 Exodus 20:12 January 22 Psalm 72:19 September 15 Psalm 77:11 June 16 Deuteronomy 5:16 August 20 Deuteronomy 18:12 October 2 Psalm 85:12 February 12 Deuteronomy 32:31 February 9 Psalm 90:8 October 11 Joshua 1:5 July 31 Psalm 91:15 December 8 Joshua 1:8 July 7 Psalm 92:5 September 22 1 Samuel 3:9 December 5 Psalm 100:2 February 21 1 Samuel 15:22 June 7 Psalm 101:3 March 20 1 Samuel 16:7 March 11, November 24 Psalm 111:4 March 4 1 Kings 3:9 *August 29* Psalm 118:24 April 29 1 Chronicles 28:9 October 9 Psalm 119:11 March 13, July 10, 1 Chronicles 29:14 July 11 September 6 2 Chronicles 30:9 July 15 Psalm 119:18 September 16 Job 27:6 November 30 Psalm 119:35 November 10 Psalm 119:97 December 26 Job 33:6 September 5 Psalm 119:105 January 23, June 22 Psalm 14:3 April 3 Psalm 19:1 April 27, June 29 Psalm 119:133 June 23 Psalm 19:12 June 8 Psalm 119:162 October 16 Psalm 119:165 September 7 Psalm 24:10 September 13 Psalm 25:9 May 15 Psalm 124:7-8 *February 19* Psalm 27:1 December 22 Psalm 133:1 *April 28* Psalm 27:5 *April 22* Psalm 136:1 November 25 Psalm 27:11 *July 1* Psalm 139:14 *March 3*. *April 24* Psalm 31:3 August 6 Psalm 141:3 April 1, August 30 Psalm 32:8 December 10 Psalm 143:8 November 1 Proverbs 1:8 November 21 Psalm 33:4 September 19 Psalm 33:12 July 19 Proverbs 3:1-2 October 18 Proverbs 3:5 November 3, December 12 Psalm 34:3 October 30 Psalm 37:21 December 11 Proverbs 4:11 August 11 Psalm 40:1 May 1 Proverbs 6:6 June 15 Psalm 40:8 January 25 Proverbs 8:19 April 23 Psalm 46:1 February 2 Proverbs 10:9 *May 13* Proverbs 10:19 October 24 Psalm 46:10 February 6 Psalm 51:2 December 27 Proverbs 11:9 September 3

Proverbs 11:30 August 2

Psalm 51:3 September 18